
Clarifications and Responses 

  

Project Title: Montserrat Energy Sector Transformation Project 

UWG-03-100825 

 

Date: 21st October 2025 

 
The Bidder has the following clarification request regarding the ITT: 

 
ITEM Clarification Response 

1 

 
Request for a two-week extension for the proposal submission 
for the opportunity titled Montserrat Energy Sector 
Transformation Project. 

 
Unfortunately, Government 
of Montserrat is not in a 
position to extend the 
deadline for submission, 
given the timeline available 
for implementation. 

Monday, 27th October 2025 

2 
CVs: Regarding section 7.5 of the RFP, must the CVs strictly 
follow the template provided in that section? 
 

The template is the preferred 
format for the submission of 
requested information.  

3 

Length: In section 6.2, “concise” is mentioned—could you 
please confirm if there is a maximum page limit per individual 
CV that we should observe? 
 

The most recent and relevant 
entries are preferred. The 
template is the preferred 
format for the submission of 
requested information and 
the CV should not surpass 
two (2) pages per person. 

4 

We note that Section 9 "Submission Requirements", included 
in the Appendices B, C, D, and E states the following:  

 Interested consultants should submit: 

• Technical proposal, including understanding of the 
assignment and methodology 

• Team composition and CVs 

• Work plan and timeline 

• Financial proposal including professional fees, 
travel, and any other costs; 

Kindly confirm if the financial proposal should be submitted as a 
separate document to a technical proposal that will include the first 
three items in the above list (namely, 1) technical proposal, 

Each item listed should be 
submitted separately and no 
price information shall appear 
in any Technical Proposal. 
The templates for each item 
have been uploaded as 
attachments to the RFP, 
namely “Submittal Forms 
(Updated)” and “Cost 
Proposal Form (Updated) 
and are the preferred format 
to be used. 



including understanding of the assignment and methodology, 2) 
Team composition and CVs, and 3) Work plan and timeline) 

 

5 

Kindly confirm if it is possible to submit only one integrated and 
unique technical proposal that includes all four lots presented in 
Appendices B, C, D, and E, and a corresponding integrated and 
unique financial proposal for all four lots. Castalia is interested in 
submitting a proposal for all four slots. Implementing the lots in an 
integrated manner will allow Castalia to show how the four lots will 
be delivered together, ensuring consistency and alignment 
between the different lots, and will also represent a lower cost due 
to efficiencies in execution done in an integrated way.   

 

A company is allowed to bid 
for all four lots, but separate 
Technical and Financial 
proposals are required for 
each. This is to allow 
submissions for each lot to be 
evaluated fairly. The 
integrated plan can also be 
submitted to showcase the 
implementation strategy.  

6 

We note that the file called "Submitals (Updated).pdf" indicates an 
established format and content for submission of the technical 
proposal. Section 9 of the Appendices B, C, D, and E also discloses 
submission requirements. We note inconsistencies between the 
two requirements, in particular for the method statement format, 
for which we think the format provided in "Submitals 
(Updated).pdf" may not enable a proper presentation and 
explanation of the assignment's methodology. Kindly clarify that the 
submission requirements that should be followed are those 
included in Section 9 of the Appendices B, C, D, and E and not the 
format indicated in "Submitals (Updated).pdf". 

 

The “Submittal (Updated) 
pdf” is the preferred template 
to be used as a guideline for 
submitting the information 
requested in Section 9.  

7 
Under Section 3.2, will the Government provide the meeting 
space and presentation facilities for the stakeholder 
workshops? 

This can be arranged when 
required.  

8 

Under Section 3.3 there is a requirement to “evaluate the 
technical and economic feasibility of various renewable energy 
options”.  In this regard: 
 

a) For geothermal potential, is it expected that new 
engineering studies will be carried out or is it more that 
existing information related to the existing body of 
knowledge on the geothermal resource will be 
accessed and assessed? 
 

b) For ocean energy (wave, tidal, OTEC) are there any 
existing studies for Montserrat’s coastal zones that are 
to be assessed or will this aspect be covered through 
reference to available international studies. 
 

c) For wind energy, are there any existing studies for 
offshore wind energy development in the vicinity of Montserrat   

a) This will be based on the 
existing body of 
knowledge which will be 
made accessible. 

 
b) There is not any existing 

information in relation to 
ocean energy so this will 
be based on international 
studies. 

 
c) There has not been any 

investigation regarding 
offshore wind but there 
was a desktop study 
conducted for onshore 
wind.  

9 
Under Item 7 there is mention that the consultant will 
coordinate closely with several groups including DESNZ.  Will 
coordination with DESNZ be either in Montserrat or virtual? 

This can be done virtually.  



10 

Question: To support the effective delivery of the Strategic 
Energy Transition Plan, PPA Structure, Tariff Reform, and 
Utility Regulator Model outlined in the RFP, could you kindly 
confirm whether the Government of Montserrat has any 
existing plans, policies, reports, datasets, or studies—such as 
energy assessments, tariff structures, legal frameworks, 
transport data, or stakeholder engagement outputs—that can 
be shared with the consultancy team? 
 
For example: 

• National energy policies, strategies, or development plans 
• Renewable energy assessments (solar, wind, 

geothermal, marine) 
• Electricity and water tariff structures and cost-of-service 

data 
• Legal and institutional frameworks relevant to utilities, 

IPPs, and regulation 
• Transport sector data (fleet composition, fuel usage, EV 

readiness) 
• Previous feasibility studies, investment models, or 

stakeholder engagement reports 
• Any existing economic models or regulatory 

benchmarking studies 

• GIS data or infrastructure maps relevant to energy or 
transport systems 

• National energy policies, 
strategies, or 
development plans – yes 
the national energy 
policy (The Power to 
Change – The 
Montserrat Energy 
Policy 2016-2030) 

 
• Renewable energy 

assessments (solar, 
wind, geothermal, 
marine) 

 
• Electricity and water 

tariff structures and cost-
of-service data – yes 

 
• Legal and institutional 

frameworks relevant to 
utilities, IPPs, and 
regulation – there is legal 
documentation relevant 
to the utility but none for 
IPPs or regulations. 

 
• Transport sector data 

(fleet composition, fuel 
usage, EV readiness) – 
fleet composition based 
on vehicles licensed is 
available per year, fuel 
usage based on fuel type 
is also available but 
there is no data on EV 
readiness as this is a 
new area for Montserrat.  

 
• Previous feasibility 

studies, investment 
models, or stakeholder 
engagement reports – 
desktop studies 
pertaining to wind and 
solar area available and 
potential energy mixes 
for Montserrat have 
been identified. 
However, there are no 
investment models or 
stakeholder reports.  

 



• Any existing economic 
models or regulatory 
benchmarking studies – 
There are none 

 
• GIS data or infrastructure 

maps relevant to energy 
or transport systems – 
GIS maps of the road 
network and electricity 
network are available.  

11 

Submission deadline: We respectfully request that the 
Government of Montserrat consider a two-week extension to 
enable us to prepare technically robust proposals for all four 
Lots, in full alignment with the respective TOR requirements. 

Unfortunately, Government 
of Montserrat is not in a 
position to extend the 
deadline for submission, 
given the timeline available 
for implementation. 

12 

Evaluation criteria: 
a. Section 6.2 (Team Qualification): Based on our 

understanding, bidders may propose a team structure 
that best aligns with their interpretation of the TOR 
requirements. Could you please confirm if this 
understanding is correct, or if specific positions/key 
experts are required? 

b. Sections 6.4 and 6.6 (Technical Approach and Method 
Statement): Could you kindly elaborate on how these 
sections will be evaluated? Our understanding is that 
both relate to the bidder’s project delivery plan, 
execution approach, and proposed methodologies. 

c. Additionally, several evaluation criteria (e.g., Sections 
6.4, 6.5, and 6.6) appear to be tailored to works 
(construction) contracts. Given that all four Lots concern 
Technical Assistance and Consulting services, we 
would appreciate further clarification on the applicability 
of these criteria. 

a) This understanding is 
correct. GoM expects 
the bidder to propose the 
best team structure 
based on the TOR 
requirements. 

 
b) These indeed are related 

to the bidder’s project 
delivery plan, execution 
approach and 
methodologies for the 
respective TOR. 

 
c) The evaluation criteria 

under Sections 6.4, 6.5 
and 6.6 should focusing 
on and speak to 
consultancy services 
oppose to construction 
works aspects 
mentioned.  

 
The technical approach will 
evaluate the company or 
firm’s comprehension of the 
lot requirements, project 
management elements, 
proposed methodologies, 
and any innovative solutions 
presented.  
 
The project management 
plan should show a practical, 
lot-specific system for 
identifying, assessing, 



monitoring and treating any 
risks across scope and 
schedule especially, and any 
other area. 
The method statement must 
show clearly and briefly how 
the consultant will deliver the 
TA and consulting services to 
specification and on time.  
 

13 
Section 7.1 (Respondent’s Company Profile): Could you 
please confirm the currency (USD or XCD) for the amount 
referenced under Question 5? 

Our preference is XCD  

14 
Budget: We would be grateful if the Client could kindly share 
the budget for all four Lots. 

The expectation is for 
interested bidders to submit 
their budget for the TA and 
consulting services being 
requested per lot.   

15 

Clause 3.9 of the RFP indicates that the contractual period 
must conclude by 31 March 2026. However, Lot 4 specifies an 
expected duration of 4–5 months, while Lot 3 indicates 5–6 
months. 
 
Assuming contract awards are made approximately four 
weeks after the 7 November submission deadline (i.e., around 
7 December 2025), this would leave less than four months until 
31 March 2026. 
 
Could you please confirm whether our delivery programme 
should? 
 

• assume a work period running from 7 December 2025 
to 31 March 2026, compressing all deliverables within 
that timeframe, or 

 

• follow the indicative durations provided in the Lots, 
which would extend the work beyond 31 March 2026? 

The deadline by which all 
works must be concluded is 
31st March 2026. The 
intention is to evaluate the 
bids received within a two-
week period but this may vary 
depending on the number of 
bids received. Assuming a 
start date of 7th December 
2025 is an acceptable 
assumption and thus 
interested bidders should 
compress deliverable into 
that timeframe.  

 


